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I. BY THE COMMISSION

A. Statement

1. This matter comes before the Commission in consideration of certain issues raised by Public Service Company of Colorado (Public Service or the Company) in its 2013 PTC Wind Bid Evaluation Report (Wind Report) and 2013 All-Source Solicitation 20-Day Report filed on May 30, 2013,
 and by Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (Staff), TradeWind Energy, LLC (TradeWind), and Accion Group (the Independent Evaluator) in their comments filed in response to Public Service’s reports.
 
Specifically, we approve Staff’s proposal that the Commission require Public Service to provide additional information on future transmission investments for the purposes of enhancing the Company’s upcoming transmission planning-related filings and of improving the coordination between transmission and generation planning for the Company’s next Electric Resource Plan (ERP) to be filed in 2015.  We also provide direction on additional information to be provided by Public Service in this proceeding in addition to the recommended inquiries raised by Staff.  We find Public Service’s transmission cost assignment for TradeWind resources 

2. appropriately follows the requirements established in Decision No. C13-0094 issued January 24, 2013 (Phase I Decision), and we further provide additional direction to the Independent Evaluator.
B. Future Transmission Considerations
3. In its comments on the Wind Report, Staff raises concerns about the timing of future transmission projects and how they interface with future ERP requirements.  For instance, Staff recommends that the Commission use this ERP proceeding to lay out the information and filings the Commission has interest in seeing in Public Service’s Senate Bill 100 (SB-100) report due October 31, 2013.  Staff specifically recommends that Public Service include a feasibility study on additional transmission capability in southeastern Colorado.  This study would include the cost of the transmission project, potential wind capacity factor increases, anticipated reliability benefits, wind diversity impacts, market discipline benefits, and economic considerations.
  

4. Staff also raises questions about how generator injection points and utility transmission construction will impact future wind resource development.  Staff states:  
The Company’s current policy of leaving the construction of generator interconnection as a responsibility of the developer may not prove to be a cost effective approach.  Existing projects, having a competitive advantage, may not give full consideration of the reduced cost in bid pricing. Also, the economics and environmental concerns stemming from extension cord transmission line development need to be assessed in the upcoming filing.

5. We concur with these observations and concerns and therefore require Public Service to provide, as part of its SB-100 report, the information as requested by Staff.  In addition, we are also interested in Public Service’s plans to develop the Lamar-Front Range area lines and direct the Company to explain the various stages of the project and what drives its decisions to proceed with each stage.  

6. Although this ERP entails a modest resource need over a relatively short resource acquisition period when Public Service is not required to acquire additional renewable energy resources for compliance with the Renewable Energy Standard (RES), the Company’s reports and the parties’ comments on them highlight the state of transmission investment and the slow course of the development of new transmission projects relative to the generation acquired to meet RES requirements.  However, it is unlikely that we will resolve in this proceeding the various problems associated with integrating generation and transmission planning given the breadth of the issues and the significant work ahead in Phase II.  Nonetheless, we require Public Service to address in this proceeding certain questions in its 120-Day Report due September 9, 2013, with the intent to examine these topics further in future transmission proceedings and the Company’s next ERP.

7. How can the transmission planning and resource planning proceedings and processes integrate better with one another?  For example, can generation forecasting in an ERP, such as forecasts of load growth and associated generation requirements beyond the resource acquisition period, better inform transmission planning?  Can the transmission planning process be used to identify locations compatible for new generation and to inform policies for transmission cost assignment in bid evaluation?

8. If it is appropriate to improve the integration of new transmission and generation investment, how does this ERP highlight the challenges of such integration, what role should Public Service play to resolve these challenges, and what steps should the Commission take to advance such integration?
9. How will this ERP proceeding inform the Company’s transmission planning process (e.g., bids received and bids not received)?  For instance, will the bids to the solicitations help identify primary transmission corridors that need to be expanded (e.g., Missile Site)?
10. Can targeted system improvements (e.g., further expansion of the Missile Site) or the development of an energy imbalance market allow for additional acquisitions of cost effective renewables without significant new transmission investment? 
11. How should the various constraints on the acquisition of additional intermittent renewable resources be taken into account in planning future transmission needs for such resources?  For example, are limits in flexible generation reserves now constraining the development of additional intermittent renewable resources and is it necessary to examine flexible generation reserves before proceeding with transmission investment for intermittent renewable resources?  
12. Should the Commission establish overarching goals to drive coordinated, 
long-term generation and transmission development and, if goals are necessary, upon what should they be based?
C. TradeWind Transmission Cost Allocation
13. In its comments on the Wind Report, TradeWind claims that its bid was not properly evaluated because Public Service did not follow the transmission cost assignment methodology that the Company outlined in the Phase I hearings.  In response, Public Service asserts that the Company properly modeled the cost to customers of upgrading the transmission system as consistent with the Phase I Decision.
  The Company also provides detailed examples of how the transmission costs are calculated for bid evaluation purposes. 
14. We find that Public Service applied estimates of transmission investment costs to the TradeWind bid consistent with our Phase I Decision.
D. Guidance to Independent Evaluator 
15. In its report regarding Public Service’s Wind Report, the Independent Evaluator makes several statements regarding its communications with Public Service and the parties.  For instance, the Independent Evaluator states that it “was advised by [Public Service] personnel that the mock bids were run after the correct evaluation modeling was used.  Through a miscommunication, the IE was unaware the results would be provided upon request, which was made on June 11, 2013.”
  The Independent Evaluator also states that:  
The IE did not receive any complaints from Bidders about the RFP process.  The IE believes both the Commission and the IE were accessible if a Bidder believed there was a serious concern regarding the execution of the RFP process that needed to be addressed to ensure the RFP was conducted fairly.  However, The RFP protocols did not invite Bidders to reach out to the IE, and contact was not easily accommodated.
  
The IE further states that: 
Bidders did not have a means to contact the IE, other than seeking out the IE independently or by sending an email to [Public Service] asking that the IE contact the Bidder.  This process is unique in the experience of this IE.  Accordingly, the IE is unable to aver whether Bidders believed the process was fair and transparent.
  
16. We advise the Independent Evaluator that it has both the authority and the responsibility to obtain the information it needs to review the inputs and outputs from the bid evaluation modeling and to assess whether the Company conducted a fair bid solicitation and bid evaluation process, consistent with our directives in the Phase I Decision.  Moreover, paragraph 3612(d) of the Commission’s ERP Rules, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations 
723-3-3600, et seq., states that the Independent Evaluator may initiate contact with the utility and other parties and we expect the Independent Evaluator to reach out proactively when completing its assigned tasks in this proceeding.
II. ORDER

A. It Is Ordered That:

1. As a part of its Senate Bill 100 report due on October 31, 2013, Public Service Company of Colorado (Public Service) shall provide a feasibility study on additional transmission capability in southeastern Colorado, discuss the economics and environmental concerns stemming from “extension cord” transmission line development, and provide other information consistent with the discussion above.
2. As a part of its 120-Day Report due to be filed in this proceeding on September 9, 2013, Public Service shall address the transmission-related questions listed above. 

3. This Decision is effective upon its Mailed Date.

B. ADOPTED IN COMMISSIONERS’ WEEKLY MEETING
July 10, 2013.
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� Public Service filed an updated version of its 2013 PTC Wind Bid Evaluation Report on June 6, 2013.


� The Commission has issued separate decisions on the primary issues raised in these reports. In Decision No. C13-0759 issued June 21, 2013, we granted initial approval to proceed with further bid evaluation and contract negotiations with certain bidders.  In Decision No. C13-0796 issued July 1, 2013, we addressed the bids claiming status as “Section 123 resources.” 


� Staff Comments on Public Service 2013 PTC Wind Evaluation Report, page 11.


� Staff Comments on Public Service 2013 PTC Wind Evaluation Report, page 12.


� By Decision No. C13-0759, we directed Public Service to respond to TradeWind’s allegations on or before July 1, 2013.


� Accion Group Independent Report on 2013 All-Source Solicitation, page 2.


� Accion Group Independent Report on 2013 All-Source Solicitation, page 5.


� Accion Group Independent Report on 2013 All-Source Solicitation, pages 19-20.





8

_1219490348.doc
[image: image1.png]Lo




[image: image2.png]





 












